
 
 
Errata Sheet 

 

1. Sections 3.2, 4.4.2.6(a) and 4.4.3.6(e): Delete all references to Attachment P-7. 
2. Under Functional Area E (FAE), Section FAE 2.2.A: Delete all references to the 

“Maryland Resource and Development Council” and/or “RC&D.” Substitute in its place, 
“County Applied Technology Center or another laboratory as determined by PPRP.” 

3. Under Attachment P-3, Section FAC-3; Attachment P-4, Section FAC-4; 
Attachment P-5, Section FAC-5; and Attachment P-6, Section FAC-6:  Please add 
the following paragraph to the end of each of the referenced sections: “Definitions of 
experience and equivalency are as follows: (A) Any combination of additional years of 
experience in the proposed field of expertise plus full-time college level study in the 
particular field totaling four (4) years will be an acceptable substitute for a B.S. degree. 
(B) A B.S. degree plus any combination of additional years of experience and graduate 
level study in the proposed field of experience totaling two (2) years will be an 
acceptable substitute for a M.S. degree. (C) A B.S. degree plus any combination of 
additional years of experience and graduate level study in the proposed field of expertise 
totaling four (4) years or a M.S. degree plus two (2) years of either additional experience 
or graduate level study in the proposed field of expertise will be an acceptable substitute 
for a Ph.D. degree. (D) Additional years of graduate level study in an appropriate field 
will be considered equal to years of experience on a one-for-one basis.” 
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Questions and Answers on RFP 

As of February 8, 2017 
 

 
1. Please explain ‘multiple and/or alternate proposals for a single functional area will 

not be accepted.’ 
 
This wording appears in Section 1.12 of the RFP.  Multiple bids from the same vendor for the 
same functional area will not be accepted.  For example, Offeror X provides 2 bids for 
Functional Area A.  For simplicity, let’s assume that the only difference in these 2 bids is the 
total evaluated price provided per Attachment F.  This case constitutes a multiple bid and 
neither of the bids will be evaluated or accepted.  Bidders must supply 1 bid and only 1 bid for 
each functional area. 
 
 

2. May proposals include responses to more than one functional area within the 
same proposal? If so, please clarify which forms will be needed separately for 
each functional area included in a proposal. 

 
A single proposal may include responses to more than one functional area.  If an Offeror elects 
to respond in this manner, it must strive to be clear what information applies to what functional 
area.  For example, refer to RFP Attachments, page 50, of the RFP.  It is obvious that one must 
have separate submittals of Attachments D and M.  Who these MBEs/VSBEs are (qualifications, 
expertise, etc.) and how one proposes to utilize MBEs/VSBEs will change among functional 
areas.  Likewise, it is obvious that the price one bids (Attachment F) will likely not be identical 
among the functional areas. However, an Offeror may or may not have a single submittal for 
Attachment G, (Living Wage Requirements), Attachment I (Conflict of Interest), or Attachment J 
(Non-disclosure).  Attachment N (Location of Performance) applies only to Functional Areas A 
and B (FAA and FAB).  If bidding on both FAA and FAB and the proposed location for the 
performance of services is identical, then only one form is needed.  NOTE: Be as transparent 
as possible in the offers. If one form applies to multiple functional areas, clearly indicate 
such in the text and on the form.  This will avoid PPRP additional questions and delays in 
evaluating your bid. 
 
 

3. May Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) be presented within this proposal? 
 
Yes, however please clearly identify them as SMEs in the text. 
 
 

4. For functional areas C-F, is the cost proposal limited to the historical not to 
exceed amount listed or should it relate to the cost offerors propose to carry out 
the scope of work elements listed for each? 

 
Cost proposals are NOT limited to the historical not to exceed amount.  Offerors may propose a 
cost greater than or less than the historical amount.  For example, the statement on page163, 
Functional Area E – CCBs, under FAE-1 Background, states, “Historically, PPRP has found that 
over a 5-year period of satisfactory performance of the work set forth below, compensation and 
payment will likely not exceed $300,000.00.”  Offerors may bid, of course, an amount lower or 



higher than $300,000.  The costs provided in this example and throughout all the Attachment P 
functional area background descriptions are provided only for historical reference. 
 
 

5. Does the criminal background check required in Section 3.3.2 need to be 
completed as part of the proposal submittal or after notice of contract award? 

 
The criminal background check requirements only apply to Functional Area D.  All criminal 
background documentation must be available upon notice of being susceptible for selection of 
contract award.  PPRP estimates that bid evaluations may take 14 to 30 days from receipt of the 
bids before such notice would be given to the Offeror. Offerors should plan accordingly to allow 
sufficient time for any criminal background checks to be completed. 
 
 

6. Do the Service Categories listed to in section 4.4.2.4 refer to the Functional Areas 
listed in 3.2? 

Yes. 
 

7. (a) Can a potential Offeror be a subcontractor for one functional area and a prime 
contractor for another functional area? (b) Can an Offeror be a subcontractor on 
two or more bids for the same functional area under different prime contractors? 

Yes, and Yes 
 

8. If I am a subcontractor, do I need to provide my individual rates in the RFP? 

No.  The prime contractor will provide a single rate for each labor category required in 
Attachment F for a given functional area.  PPRP will only review the rates provided in the 
Attachment F forms.  For example, for Functional Area A, one rate will be proposed for the labor 
category, Project Manager, in an Offeror’s bid.  If the Offeror is awarded the bid, that specific 
rate will apply to all billings during the first year of the contract.   

 

9. Can a subject matter expert charge a different rate? 

Answer:  Yes. For example, please refer to item 8, page 106, of the RFP, which states, “8. Line 
item 7, Subject Matter Expert, represents a Not-to-Exceed (NTE) value of $500.00/hour for the 
course of the Contract. The addition of Subject Matter Experts will be considered on a case by 
case basis and must be individually preapproved in writing by the State Contract Monitor. 
Approved labor rates for Subject Matter Experts may be lower than or equal to, but cannot 
exceed, the NTE value of $500.00/hour.”  

 

10.  Is this RFP new, and if not, who are the incumbents? 
 

Yes, this RFP, composed of 6 functional areas, is new.  In the past, there have been two 
contracts associated with the work described in the RFP.  PPRP elected to break up these two 
contacts into 6 distinct functional areas as to allow for a more competitive bidding process.  



ERM is the prime contractor for one of the contracts and Versar, Inc., is the prime contractor for 
the other one.  Both contracts will end in July 2017. 

 

11.  How many contract awards will there be? 

There will be six awards. However, a single Offeror may win awards for more than one 
functional area.  For example, Company X bids on 3 functional areas, Functional Areas A, E 
and F.  It wins awards for 2 of the 3 functional areas, Functional Areas A and E.  Company X 
will have one contract with DNR for the two functional areas, Functional Areas A and E.  
Likewise, Company Y bids only on Functional Area F and wins the award. Company Y will have 
one contract with DNR for Functional Area F. 

 

12.  If a potential Offeror presently works for a utility, can it bid on Functional Area C, 
D, E or F? 

Yes.  Caution is advised, however, for potential Offerors of Functional Areas A and B (FA-A and 
FA-B).  Per the General Requirements of FA-A and FA-B, “The Contractor shall also be 
responsible for preparing and presenting testimony for hearings and adjudicatory proceedings 
before the Public Service Commission and other regulatory bodies.”  In this capacity, the 
Contractor will be representing the interests of PPRP and must avoid any potential or perceived 
conflict of interest occurring from working at the same time for a utility or merchant generator.  
For example, a Contractor who is working for a utility or merchant generator who has applied for 
a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) in parallel with working for PPRP 
(who is evaluating the CPCN application) obviously has potential conflict of interest.  The 
Contractor would not be able to represent PPRP during review of the application or be able to 
present expert testimony at evidentiary hearings associated with the case. 
 

13.  How long had the previous two contracts been in effect? 
 

Five years. 

 

14.  If PPRP only receives one bid from an Offeror for a given functional area, will the 
Offeror be awarded the contract? 
 

Provided that the Offeror’s bid package is complete, meets the minimum requirements of the 
RFP, and contains a reasonable price for its services, PPRP will recommend to Maryland’s 
Board of Public Works (BPW) that the Offeror be awarded the contract.  Final approval of any 
contract to be awarded from this RFP rests with the BPW. 

 

 

 

 



15.  For Functional Area D, does a potential bidder need to employee a certified 
Health Physicist? 
 

No.  See Attachment F, Form F4, which shows the labor categories required for Functional Area 
D.  PPRP will encourage the Contractor awarded the contract for Functional Area D to have a 
Radiation Safety Officer certificate; however, this certificate is not a requirement of the RFP. 

 

16.  With respect to Section 3.4.6, please confirm that the Errors and 
Omissions/Professional Liability insurance minimum limit is intended to be 
$5,000,000 per claim and annual aggregate.  This minimum limit is not consistent 
with the $1,000,000 limit included in the July 2015 Solicitation No. RFP- 
K00R5400159 for Technical Assistance in Environmental Engineering, and the 
minimum limit required for the March 2015 Solicitation No. RFP- K00R4400361 for 
Technical Assistance in Atmospheric Sciences. 

The number ($5,000,000.00) is the correct amount.  The minimum coverage requirements have 
changed since the 2015 solicitation.  However, an Offeror may elect to take exception to this 
amount, and such exception may be granted if sufficient justification is presented.  Please note 
the requirements of Sections 4.4.2.4, 5.4.2.4 and 5.4.2.5 when considering taking an exception 
to the requirements of this RFP. 

 

17.  In the scopes of work for Functional Areas A and B, under Staffing, there is a 
paragraph with "definitions of experience and equivalency" (see, for example, the 
4th full paragraph on RFP page 143).  However, the same paragraph does not 
appear in the Staffing section for Functional Areas C, D, E, and F.  Please clarify 
whether professional experience in the proposed field of expertise is considered 
an acceptable equivalency for academic degrees, across all Functional Area 
scopes of work, as it is for Functional Areas A and B.  

The following paragraph was an inadvertent omission in the Staffing section for Functional 
Areas C, D, E, and F.  “Definitions of experience and equivalency are as follows: (A) Any 
combination of additional years of experience in the proposed field of expertise plus full-time 
college level study in the particular field totaling four (4) years will be an acceptable substitute 
for a B.S. degree. (B) A B.S. degree plus any combination of additional years of experience and 
graduate level study in the proposed field of experience totaling two (2) years will be an 
acceptable substitute for a M.S. degree. (C) A B.S. degree plus any combination of additional 
years of experience and graduate level study in the proposed field of expertise totaling four (4) 
years or a M.S. degree plus two (2) years of either additional experience or graduate level study 
in the proposed field of expertise will be an acceptable substitute for a Ph.D. degree. (D) 
Additional years of graduate level study in an appropriate field will be considered equal to years 
of experience on a one-for-one basis.” 

Please see the Errata sheet, which is provided at the beginning of this document. 

 
 


